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Mr. Robert L. Rose
President
Tampa Bay Pipeline Company
P.O.Box 35236
Sarasota,Fl,34242
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Dear Mr. Rose:
Enclosedis the Final Order issuedby the Acting AssociateAdministrator for Pipeline Safety
in the above-referencedcase. It makes findings of violation and assessesa civil penalty of
$71,500. It further finds that you have completedthe actions specified in the Notice required to
comply with the pipeline safety regulations. When the civil penalty is paid, this enforcement
action will be closed. Your receipt of the Final Order constitutesservice of that document under
49 C.F.R.€ 190.5.
Sincerely,

tu-

JamesReynolds
PipelineComplianceRegistry
PHMSA,Officeof PipelineSafety

Enclosure
Ms. Lin<ia Daugherty, Director, SouihernRegion, OPS;
Mr. Glenn I). Howell, General Manager. Tampa Bay Pipeline Company

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
PIPELINE AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS SAFETY ADMINISTRATION
OFFICE OF PIPELINE SAF'ETY
WASHINGTON. D.C. 20590

In the Matter of
TampaBay PipelineCompany'
Respondent

)
)
)
)
)
)
)

CPF No.2-2003-6012

FINAL ORDER
of the Pipelineand
On May 17-18,2005, pursuart to 49 U.S.C. $ 60117,representatives
HazardousMaterials Safety Administration, Office of Pipeline Safety (OPS) conductedan onsite pipeline safety inspection of Respondent'sOperator Qualification (OQ) procedwes and
records at its Tampa, Florida office. As a result of the inspection,the Director, Southem Region,
OPS issuedto Respondent,by letter dated SeptemberI 3, 2005, a Notice of Probable Violation,
ProposedCivil Penalty, and ProposedCompliance Order (Notice). In accordancewith 49 C.F'R.
$ 190.207,the Notice proposed finding that Respondenthad committed violations of 49 C.F.R.
Part I 95 and proposedassessinga civil penalty of $71,500 for the alleged violations. The Notice
also proposed ordering Respondentto take certain measuresto correct the alleged violations. '.
Respondentrespondedto the Notice by letter dated Oclober 7,2005 (Response). Respondent
statedthat it intended to revise its OQ program in accordancewith the ProposedCompliance
Order, but requesteda hearing regarding the Notice and the ProposedCivil Penalty. The hearing
washefdonMarch 25,2006 inAtlanta, Georgia. Afterthishearing,Respondentoffered
additional information on April 25,2006.
F'INDINGS OF VIOLATION
Item I in the Notice allegedthat Respondentviolated49 C.F.R. $ 195.505(a)by:
A. failing to establisha list identif,ving its OQ "covered tasks" by the applicable deadlineof
April27,2001;
B. failing to include all covered tasks in the list once it was established;and
C. failing to review the covered task list using the four-part test with Part 195 operationand
maintenanceactivities.

Respondentdid not contestallegationsB or C. With respectto A, the allegation that Respondent
failed to establisha list identifying its OQ coveredtasks by the applicable deadline, Respondent
statedat the hearing that it had written a "redbook framework" for developing an OQ program
prior to Aprll27,2001, but acknowledgedthat this documentwas actually an outline of only a
few pagesthat merely reiteratedthe OQ regulationsin Subpart G of C.F.R. Part 195. Therefore,
Respondentwas unable to document that it had an OQ program for its pipeline system completed
and in place by April 27,2001 when required. Respondentthen statedthat it had reasonto
believe that it had generateda covered task list in Decemberof 2002 and offered a CD that it
claimed showedthat thesetasks were savedon its computerbetween December 11,2002 and
January2,2003. Respondent'sclaim, however, contradictsa slatementmade by Respondent's
own OQ Plan Administrator to OPS at the time of the inspection that the covered task list was
not completeduntil 2005 after it was received from a sister company. Moreover, these datesare
still substantiallylater than the Aprrl27,2001 deadlineset forth in the relevant regulation.
Respondenifaile<ito produce any verifiable contemporaneousdocumentation or other persuasive
evidenceto show that it had establisheda list identiffing its OQ covered tasks by Apil27 , 2O0l
when required. Accordingly, I find that Respondentviolated$ 195.505(a)as describedin the
Notice.
Item2 in the Notice allegedthat Respondentviolated49 C.F.R. $ 195.505(b)by failing to have
OQ provisions in place to ensurethat contractor individuals performing covered tasks on its
pipeline were qualified, and failing to include provisions for the use of training to qualify or requalify individuals to perform covered tasks. Respondentdid not contest this item.
Accordingly, I find that Respondentviolated $ 195.505(b)as more fully describedin the Notice.
Item 3 in the Notice allegedthat Respondentviolated49 C.F.R. $ 195.505(b)by failing to have
OQ provisions in place to ensurethat individuals performing covered tasks on its pipeline were
qualified to recognizc and react to abnormal operating conditions (AOCs). At the hearing,
Respondentrepeatedits statementthat it had written a "redbook framework" for developing an
OQ program prior to the April 27,2001 deadline. Respondent,however, failed to demonstrate
that it had an OQ program addressingthe requirementsassociatedwith AOCs in place when
required. Accordingly, I find that Respondentviolated $ 195.505(b)as describedin the Notice.
Item 4 in the Notice allegedthat Respondentviolated49 C.F.R. $ 195.505(c)by failing to have
OQ provisions in place to ensurethat any covered task performed by an individual who is not
qualified is done only ifdirected and observedby an individual that is qualified. Respondentdid
violated $ 195.505(c)as more fully
not contestthis item. Accordingly, I find that Respclndent
describedin the Notice.
Item 5 in the Notice allegedthat Respondentviolated49 C.F.R. $ 195.505(d)by failing to have
OQ provisions in place to evaluate an individual whose performanceof a covered task may have
contributed to an accident. Respondentdid not contestthis item. Accordingly, I irnd that
Respondentviolated $ 195.505(d)as more fully describedin the Notice.

Item 6 in the Notice allegedthat Respondentviolated 49 C.F.R. g 195.505(e)by failing to have
OQ provisions in place to evaluatean individual for the purposeof determining whether the
individual is no longer qualifi.edto perform a covered task. Respondentdid not contestthis item.
Accordingly, I find that Respondentviolated $ 195.505(e)as more fully describedin the Notice.
Item 7 in the Notice allegedthat Respondentviolated 49 C.F.R- $ 195.505(0 by failing to have
OQ provisions in place to identiff and communicate changesthat affect covered tasks to
individuals performing tlrose coveredtasks. Respondentdid not contestthis item. Accordingly,
I find that Respondentviolated $ 195.505(f) as more fully describedin the Notice.
Item 8 in the Notice allegedthat Respondentviolated 49 C.F.R. g 195.505(9)by failing to have
OQ provisions in place identifying the re-evaluation intervals for covered tasks. In its posthearing submittal, Respondentassertedthat "The TBPL managementhad elected to do reevaluationsevery five years; therefore,re-evaluationwas not required until Decembet,20A7."
This response,ho'wever,does not demonstratethat re-evaluatiorrintervals had been established
when required, much less document any supportingjustifications for interval length. Respondent
failed to demonstratethat it had an OQ program addressingthe re-evaluation intervals !n place
when required. Accordingly, I find that Respondentviolated g 195.505(g)as describedin the
Notice.
Item 9 in the Notice alleged that Respondentviolated 49 C.F.R. g 195.507by:
A. failing to maintain qualification records including the datesof current qualification;
B. failing to maintain qualification records identifying the covered tasks of each individual;
C. failing to maintain qualification records including the qualilication methods and criteria;
and
D. failing to maintain qualification records for contractor individuals who had performed
covered tasks on the pipeline.
Respondentdid not contestallegations B or C. With respectto A, the allegation that Respondent
failed to maintain qualification records including the datesof current qualification, Respondent
acknowledgedthat theserecords containedno dates. With respectto D, the allegation that
Respondentfailed to maintain qualification records for contractorindividuals who had
performed covered tasks on the pipeline, Respondentacknowledgedthat at the time, it failed to
produce any records that would have demonstratedthat contractor individuals had been qualified
on tasksthey performed on its pipeline prior to performing them. Accordingly, I find that
Respondentviolated $ 195.507by failing to maintain the specified records during the relevant
time period.
Item 10 in the Notice allegedthat Respondentviolated 49 C.F.R. $ 195.509by failing to havean
OQ program completed and in place by April 2l ,2001. Respondentagain relied on its argument
that it had a "redbook framework" in place by the April 27,2001 deadline. Once again,
however, Respondentconcededthat this documentwas actually an outline of only a few pages
that merely reiteratedthe OQ regulations in Subpart G of C.F.R. Part 195^ Respondentfailed to
produce any verifiable contemporaneousdocumentationor other persuasiveevidence to show

that it had a completeoQ programin placeby April 27,2001 when required.r Accordingly, I
find that Respondentviolated g 195.509as describedin the Notice.
Thesefindings ofviolation will be consideredprior offensesin any subsequentenforcement
action taken againstRespondent.
ASSESSMENT OF'PENALTY
Under 49 U.S.C. $ 60122, Respondentis subjectto a civil penaltynot to exceed$100,000per
violation for each day of the violation up to a maximum of $1,000,000 for any related series of
violations.
49 U.S.C. g 60122 and 49 C.F.R. $ 190.225require that, in determining the amount of the civil
penalty, I consider the following criteria: nature,circumstances,and gravity of the violation,
degreecfRespondent's culpability, history ofRespondent's prior offenses,Respondent'sability
to pay the penalty, good faith by Respondentin attempting to achieve coqpliance, the effect on
Respondent'sability to continue in business,and such other matters asjustice may require.
With respectto Item 1.A, the Notice proposeda civil penalty of $5,000 for Respondent'sfailure
to establisha list identifuing its OQ coveredtasks by the applicable deadline of April 27,2001 ln
accordancewith $ 195.505(a). Having a complete OQ program in place to ensurethat
individuals performing covered tasks are properly qualified is an important part of pipeline
safety. Respondent'spipeline systemis located in urban and suburbanareasand the
consequencesofany errors that causeor conftibute to a releasefrom the pipeline could be
serious. Establishing the covered tasks on a given pipeline system is akey step in developing
any OQ progam becausein order to assessthe effectivenessofan operator's processfor
establishingthat an individual is qualified to perform a given task, that task and its criteria must
be available to compare against the individual's previous evaluationsand qualifications.
Respondenthas presentedno information that would warant a reduction in the civil penalty
amormtproposed in the Notice for this violation. Accordingly, having reviewed the record and
consideredlhe assessmentcriteria, I assessRespondenta civil penalty of$5,000 for its violation
of$ 195.505(a).
With respectto Item 3, the Notice proposeda civil penalty of $5,000 for Respondent'sfailure to
have OQ provisions to ensurethat individuals performing covered tasks were qualified to
recognizeand reactto abnormaloperatingconditionsin accordancewith $ 195.505(b).Having a
complete OQ program in place to ensurethat individuals performing coveredtasks are properly
qualified is an important part of pipeline safety. Respondent'spipeline systemis located in
urban and suburbanareasand the consequencesof any errors that causeor contribute to a release
from the pipeline could be serious. Respondenthaspresentedno information that would warrant
a reduction in the civil penalty amount proposedin the Notice for this violation. Accordingly,
having reviewed the record and consideredthe assessmentcriteria, I assessRespondenta civil
' Respondentfailed to make this
showing at the time of the inspection and again failed to make this showing during
the hearing. Respondentdid submit an undated copy of the OQ plan that it ultimately developed with its posthearingmaterials,but this plan was not in place during the relevanttime period of April 27,200]..

penaltyof$5,000 for its violation ofg 195.505(b).
With respectto Item 8, the Notice proposed a civil penalty of $4,500 for Respondent's failure to
have OQ provisions identifoing the re-evaluation intervals for covered tasks in accordancewith $
195.505(9). Having a complete OQ program in place to ensurethat individuals performing
coveredtasks are properly qualified is an important part ofpipeline safety, Respondent's
pipeline system is located in urban and suburbanareasand the consequencesofany errors that
causeor contribute to a releasefrom the pipeline could be serious. Respondenthas presentedno
information that would warrant a reduction in the civil penalty amount proposed in the Notice for
this violation. Accordingly, having reviewed the record and consideredthe assessmentcdteria, I
assessRespondenta civil penaltyof $4,500for its violation of $ I 95.505(9).
With respectto Item 9.A, the Notice proposeda civil penalty of $4,500 for Respondent'sfailure
to maintain qualification recordsincluding the datesof current qualification in accordancewith $
195.507. Having a complete OQ program in place to ensurethat individuais performing covered
tasks are properly qualified is an important part ofpipeline safety. Violations of recordkeeping
requirementsare seriousbecausein the absenceof complete and reliable records, neither a
pipeline operator nor OPS can properly evaluateand overseethe effectivenessofa safety
program. Respondenthas presentedno information that would warrant a reduction in the civil
penalty amount proposedin the Notice for this violation. Accordingly, having reviewed the
record and consideredthe assessmentcriteria, I assessRespondenta civil penalty of$4,500 for
its violation of$ 195.507.
With respectto Item 9.D, the Notice proposed a civil penalty of $2,500 for Respondent'sfailure
to maintain qualification records for contractor individuals who had performed covered taskson
the pipeline in accordancewith $ 195.507. Having a complete OQ program in place to ensure
that individuals performing covered tasks are properly qualified is an important part of pipeline
safety. Violations of recordkeepingrequirementsare seriousbecausein the absenceof complete
and reliable records, neither a pipeline operator nor OPS can properly evaluate and overseelhe
effectivenessof a safety program. Respondenthas presentedno information that would warrant
a reduction in the civil penalty amount proposed in the Nofice for this violation. Accordingly,
having reviewed the record and consideredthe assessmentcriteria, I assessRespondenta civil
penaltyof $2,500 for its violation of $ 195.507.
With respectto Item 10, the Notice proposed a civil penalty of $50,000 for Respondent'sfailure
to havean OQ program in place by April 27,2001 in accordancewith $ 195.509. Having a
complete OQ program in place to ensurethat individuals performing coveied tasks are properly
qualified is an important part of pipeline safety. Respondent'spipeline system is located in
urban and suburbanareasand the consequencesof any errors that causeor contribute to a release
from the pipeline could be serious. Respondenthas presentedno information that would warrant
a reduction in the civil penalty amount proposed in the Notice for this violation. Accordingly,
having reviewed the record and consideredthe assessmentcriteria, I assessRespondenta civil
penaltyof $50,000for its violation of $ 195.509.

Basedon the forgoing, having reviewed the record and consideredthe assessmentcriteria, I
assessRespondenta total civil penalty of $71,500. Respondenthas the ability to pay this penalty
without adverselyaffecting its ability to continue in business.
Paymentof the civil penalty must be made within 20 days of service. Federal regulations
(49 C.F.R. $ 89.21(bX3)) require this payment be made by wire transfer, through the Federal
ReserveCommunications System (Fedwire), to the account of the U.S. Treasury. Detailed
instructions are containedin the enclosure. Questionsconcerningwire transfers should be
directed to: Financial OperationsDivision (AMZ-300), FederalAviation Administration, Mike
Monroney Aeronautical Center, P.O. Box 25082, Oklahoma City, OK 73125; (405) 954-8893.
Failure to pay the $71,500 civil penalty will result in accrualof interest at the current annual rate
in accordance
with 31 U.S.C.S 3717,31C.F.R.$ 901.9and49 C.F.R.$ 89.23. Pursuantto
those sameauthorities, a late penalty chargeof six percent (6%) per annum will be chargedif
payment is not made within I l0 days of service. Furthermore,failure to pay the civii penalty
may result in referral of lhe matter to the Attorney General for appropriate action in a United
StatesDistrict Court.
COMPLIANCE

ORDER

The Notice proposed a Compliance Order specifying actions to be taken by Respondentto
correct the violations. Under 49 U.S.C. $ 601 l8(a), each personwho engagesin the
transportationofhazardous liquids or who owns or operatesa pipeline facility is required to
comply with the applicable safety standardsestablishedunder chapter 601. The Director,
SouthemRegion, OPS, has indicated that Respondenthas provided documentation
demonstratingthat it has now correctedthe deficiencies in its OQ program as specified in the
Proposed.ComplianceOrder. Accordingly, since compliance has been achieved with respectto
theseviolations, it is unnecessaryto include compliance terms in this Order.
Under 49 C.F.R. $ 190.215, Respondenthas a right to submita petition for reconsideration
of
this Final Order. Should Respondentelect to do so, the petition must be received within 20 days
of Respondent'sreceipt of this Final Order and must contain a brief statementof the issue(s).
The hling of a petition automatically stays the payment of any civil penalty assessed.However
if Respondentsubmits payment of the civil penalty, the Final Order becomesthe final
administrative decision and the right to petition for reconsiderationis waived, The terms and
i+(onsof this Final Order are effective on receipt.
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